
MINUTES OF THE 
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING

Thursday, October 18, 2012
MAG Office Building

Phoenix, Arizona

MEMBERS ATTENDING

Christine Smith, Phoenix, Chair
* Louis Andersen, Gilbert, Vice Chair

Cindy Blackmore, Avondale
# Elizabeth Biggins-Ramer, Buckeye
# Shereen Sepulveda, Chandler
* Robert Senita, El Mirage

Christina Betz for Frank Lomeli, Glendale
Willy Elizondo, Goodyear

* Chuck Ransom, Litchfield Park
* Will Black, Mesa

Jerry Cooper for William Mead, Paradise Valley
# Rhonda Humbles, Peoria

Ramona Simpson, Queen Creek
Richard Allen, Salt River 
   Pima-Maricopa Indian Community

Manuel Castillo, Scottsdale
James Swanson, Surprise
John Osgood for Charlie Bladine, Tempe

* Rick Austin, Wickenburg 
*  Helen Heiden, Arizona Chamber of

   Commerce and Industry
Veronica Garcia, Arizona
   Department of Environmental Quality

* Jill Bernstein, Keep Arizona Beautiful
# Brian Kehoe, Maricopa County
* Dan Casiraro, Salt River Project
* Alfred Gallegos, Valley Forward

*Those members neither present nor represented by proxy.
#Attended by telephone conference call.

OTHERS PRESENT

 Julie Hoffman, Maricopa Association of 
    Governments
 Kara Johnson, Maricopa Association of 
    Governments
 Kelly Taft, Maricopa Association of 
    Governments

Tony Miano, City of Phoenix
Daron Lawhead, City of Phoenix

1. Call to Order

A meeting of the MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) was conducted on Thursday,
October 18, 2012.  Christine Smith, City of Phoenix, Chair, called the meeting to order at
approximately 10:15 a.m. Shereen Sepulveda, City of Chandler; Elizabeth Biggins-Ramer, Town
of Buckeye; Brian Kehoe, Maricopa County; and Rhonda Humbles, City of Peoria, attended the
meeting via telephone conference call.

1



2. Call to the Audience

Chair Smith provided an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items
not scheduled on the agenda that fall under the jurisdiction of MAG or items on the agenda for
discussion, but not for action.  She noted that according to the MAG public comment process,
members of the audience who wish to speak are requested to fill out comment cards, which are
available on the tables adjacent to the doorways inside the meeting room.  Citizens are asked not to
exceed a three minute time period for their comments.  Chair Smith noted that no public comment
cards had been received.  

3. Approval of the July 24, 2012 Meeting Minutes

The Committee reviewed the minutes from the July 24, 2012 meeting.  Ramona Simpson, Town of
Queen Creek, moved and Cindy Blackmore, City of Avondale, seconded and the motion to approve
the July 24, 2012 meeting minutes carried unanimously.

5. Same Day Trash and Recycling Collection Service

Ms. Simpson presented the Town of Queen Creek Same Day Trash and Recycling Collection
Program.  She stated that prior to 2010, the Town of Queen Creek was serviced by subscription solid
waste services.  Ms. Simpson noted that previously multiple hauling companies were providing
service six days a week.  In 2007, the Town of Queen Creek embarked on an intense solid waste
study.  Ms. Simpson indicated that the Town Council decided, based on the solid waste study, that
same day trash and recycling services would best fit the needs of the community.  

Ms. Simpson discussed the goals of the Same Day Trash and Recycling Program.  She stated that
one goal of the program involved the recycling diversion rate.  The Town projected a recycling
diversion rate of 12 percent for fiscal years 2010 and 2011.  The conservative diversion rate was
projected because same day collection was not being implemented at the same time for the whole
Town due to differing community Home Owners Association contracts.  Since the beginning of the
program in 2010, the Town of Queen Creek has had a consistent recycling diversion rate of 20
percent.  Ms. Simpson mentioned that the Town attributes the success to the same day trash and
recycling collection.  She indicated that another efficiency realized with same day collection is the
trash and recycling inspections.  The mandatory trash inspections for bag and tie can occur at the
same time as recycling inspections for contamination.  Ms. Simpson stated that the Town projected
11,250 inspections for the first year and 13,500 were achieved.  She discussed that the projected
inspections for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 is 32,000 since the inspector is able do both inspections
at the same time for each household.  Ms. Simpson commented that the Town employs one
inspector. 

Ms. Simpson reviewed trash and recycling inspections.  Due to the recent implementation of the
program, many residents are not familiar with recycling conventions.  Ms. Simpson stated that the
inspector can provide specific educational outreach materials to residents that go beyond the basic
information.  This positive method is used to educate residents on recycling procedures and advocate
recycling.  

Ms. Simpson discussed inspection tracking using Geographic Information Systems (GIS).  She
indicated that the GIS tracking program color codes residences that have recieved violation warnings
or notices.  Ms. Simpson stated that this information is helpful to determine the most common trash
and recycling issues in an easy, graphic manner.  The program also provides summaries and the

2



history for individual households, using the varying categories of violation.  Ms. Simpson discussed
that the GIS inspection tracking tool helps determine the focus for the public education and outreach. 
She mentioned that the most frequent violation is plastic bags in the recycling bin.  Overfilled
receptacles was the second most common violation.  The GIS inspection tracking program has been
used in tandem with the same day trash and recycling program to achieve more inspections, use data
to determine common issues, and designate a focus for future program effort. 

Ms. Simpson discussed other efficiencies realized through the same day trash and recycling
collection.  She noted that scheduled street sweeping and road maintenance have become easier due
to increased days when receptacles are not on the street.  Ms. Simpson indicated that same day
collection has also lead to a reduction of missed pickups.  Another benefit realized is reduced truck
traffic in residential areas.  Ms. Simpson stated that work order processing and monitoring collection
has become easier since each zone of the Town has a designated collection day.  She discussed that
since the implementation of same day service, overall resident satisfaction is high.  Resident
feedback has indicated appreciation for the convenience and improved community appearance with
same day trash and recycling collection.  

Richard Allen, Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, asked if there was any recycling prior
to the implementation of same day trash and recycling collection.  Ms. Simpson replied that limited
curbside pickups were available to limited areas of the Town by a private service company.  

James Swanson, City of Surprise, inquired if the Town noticed a reduction in cost with same day
collection.  Ms. Simpson responded that the Town of Queen Creek did not provide recycling services
prior to the implementation of same day collection, thus there was no reduction in cost from two day
collection to same day collection.  She stated that the Town is able to keep rates low due to same day
service.  She mentioned that Queen Creek has the second lowest rates in the East Valley.  Ms.
Simpson commented that the reduced rates were actualized through negotiations with the contracted
hauler.  She stated that the hauler has since changed other contracted routes due to efficiencies
realized with the Queen Creek same day collection program.   Mr. Swanson asked if the request for
proposals (RFP) had options for both same day and two day collection.  Ms. Simpson replied that
the RFP did include options for both same day and two day collection.  Mr. Swanson inquired if
same day collection was more costly than two day collection.  Ms. Simpson responded that there was
an initial investment for same day collection due to contracted rescheduled routes, however, she
stated that subsequently there was no rate increase from the contracted hauler.  

Chair Smith asked if the contracted hauler retains the recycling revenues to offset costs.  Ms.
Simpson responded that the contract is considered revenue shared.  The hauler determines the
optimal material recovery facility to conduct business and the hauler retains a portion of the recycling
revenue.  

Sheree Sepulveda, City of Chandler, inquired if the inspector uses the GIS inspection tracking
program in the field.  Ms. Simpson replied that the inspector does utilize a laptop in the field for
work orders and other tasks.  She indicated that the information from the field is then integrated into
the GIS inspection tracking program.  Ms. Simpson commented the next step is to utilize the GIS
program in the field.  

Brian Kehoe, Maricopa County, asked how the violations were issued to residents.  Ms. Simpson 
responded that Queen Creek modeled their violation notification after the City of Chandler.  She
stated that the warning or violation and public education materials are placed on the receptacle
handle.  

3



Rhonda Humbles, City of Peoria, inquired if the additional inspections will be conducted by an
additional inspector.  Ms. Simpson stated that Queen Creek will continue operations with one
inspector until inspection duties warrant an additional inspector.  She stated that when the program
was implemented, the inspector aided in other tasks, however, the inspector can now conduct a larger
number of inspections.  Ms. Humbles asked if Queen Creek has received comments from the
contracted hauler that residents are placing the trash and recycling receptacles too close together. 
Ms. Simpson replied that the vendor has experienced this, however, public education materials that
preceded the same day trash and recycling collection, as well as, public education materials placed
on the receptacle address this issue.  She discussed that a violation category is in place for
receptacles being too close together.  Ms. Simpson noted that this is not a common violation.  

Chair Smith inquired if fines or other impacts are in place for a high number of violations.  Ms.
Simpson responded that the current design in place, based upon Council input, is centered around
public outreach and education.  She noted that Queen Creek does have an ordinance that allows
additional levels of enforcement, however, since the program is new to residents, the Town is
focusing on public education.  The GIS inspection tracking program now allows Queen Creek to
tailor public education and outreach efforts to the specific needs of the community.  Ms. Simpson
stated that the Town is currently gathering data to determine if and how increased levels of
enforcement need to be applied. 

Ms. Simpson thanked the Committee.

Tony Miano, City of Phoenix, presented Same Day Trash and Recycling Collection in the City of
Phoenix.  He stated that he is the Deputy Director of the Solid Waste Field Services Division which
includes: solid waste collection; recycling collection; bulk trash collection; public outreach; vector
checks; contamination; customer service; and other functions.  Mr. Miano noted that the diverse
Division has approximately 350 employees.  He explained that the City has used managed
competition for 32 years and currently 100 percent of the City of Phoenix collection belongs to the
City.  He stated that another success of the Public Works Department is their customer service which
is ranked second in the City.  Mr. Miano discussed another achievement of the Public Works
Department: the City’s solid waste services have not had a fee increase in four years.  

Mr. Miano discussed the solid waste services prior to same day collection.  He stated that last year
the City Manager approached with the idea of same day collection.  The City had reviewed same day
collection years prior, however, it had not been the right time.  Mr. Miano explained that prior to
same day collection Phoenix collected refuse and recycling on two separate days.  The schedule for
the last 30 years of collection was four - ten hour days with Customer Contact Center hours for the
public from 7:15 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Mr. Miano noted that the Contact Center receives 800 to 1,000
calls per day.  He commented that the Customer Contact Center adheres to a performance standard
of answering a call in three rings and subsequently answering a question within three minutes.  Mr.
Miano noted that calls for various departments are serviced at the Customer Contact Center. 

Mr. Miano presented the changes to the solid waste collection service.  When the City began
collection of refuse and recycling on the same day, the schedule changed to five - eight hour days. 
Mr. Miano discussed that the Customer Contact Center hours changed to 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  He
indicated that the Customer Contact Center also performs functions outside public customer service. 
He stated that work orders from collections trucks communicate through Automatic Vehicle
Location devices to the Customer Contact Center.  

4



Mr. Miano provided an overview of statistical information for fiscal year 2010-2011.  He indicated
that the City of Phoenix serviced over 398,000 solid waste customers with a population of
approximately 1.5 million.  The City collected about 450,000 tons of refuse and 112,000 tons of
recycling.  Mr. Miano stated that the City is over 550 square miles which translates to 4.2 million
miles driven annually by collection vehicles.  He explained that the City of Phoenix is so large that
the new five day schedule to accommodate same day collection optimized the collection trips. 

Mr. Miano reviewed solid waste service areas for the City of Phoenix.  The City is divided into 10
service areas (labeled A through J) and four service centers. Sections C, I, and J are serviced by the
Union Hills Service Center.  The Glenrosa Service Center services Sections A and B.  Sections G
and H are serviced by the Salt River Service Center.  The Okemah Service Center services Sections
D, E, and F. 

Mr. Miano outlined the efficiencies of same day collection.  The two day collection schedule that
utilized four - ten hour days managed 2.5 loads per day which equated to 3 trips to the transfer
station per day.  This schedule achieved approximately 1,992 loads per week for the City.  Mr.
Miano stated that this schedule was inefficient for the outskirts of the Phoenix because trucks were
making trips without full trucks.  However, with the five - eight hour days, two loads were collected
per day which equates to only two trips per day to the transfer station.  The reduced number of trips
saves time traveling to the transfer stations.  This schedule achieves approximately 1,540 loads per
week.  The five day schedule saves 452 trips.  Mr. Miano stated that the efficiencies realized lead
to the downsizing of 12 trucks and 12 drivers.  He indicated cost savings of $1.4 million have been
realized through same day collection.  

Mr. Miano discussed the advantages of same day collection which include: enhanced customer
service; enhanced community environment; customer convenience (residents only have to remember
one day for all their refuse and recycling needs); reduced operating and maintenance costs; balances
workloads at Transfer Stations (workload spread across five days instead of four); and reduced rush
hour traffic congestion with large trucks.  Mr. Miano commented that the operation and maintenance
costs constituted much of the cost savings.  He explained that since operating hours are shorter, many
heat related maintenance situations (air conditioning, blown tires, fluids heating) are bypassed. 

Mr. Miano presented the challenges for same day collection.  He stated that the transition from two
to one day collection was a cultural shift for customers and staff.  Mr. Miano noted that the City
worked with the employee union to make the transition with no grievances.  He added that the
operators voted on holiday schedules.  The only days where City of Phoenix collection service is not
provided are Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Years Day.  Mr. Miano mentioned that
the last holiday was hectic for collection staff, however, future planned public outreach will aid in
reducing confusion.  He indicated that the City utilized many forms of media to alert residents to the
change of same day collection.  Newspaper, radio, television, community meetings, and mailings
were just some of the tools Phoenix utilized to alert the public on same day collection.  Mr. Miano
stated that in June of 2012, one month before implementation, a survey was sent regarding same day
collection.  He noted that 82 percent of people surveyed knew the implementation date of same day
collection.  Mr. Miano mentioned that operations were back to normal merely two weeks after same
day collection was implemented.  He stated that the implementation of same day collection ran
seamlessly due to collaboration between various Public Works divisions.  

Mr. Miano reviewed additional challenges of same day collection.  He stated that approximately
8,000 residents were not converted to same day collection due to compact neighborhoods.  Residents
not on same day collection are serviced under special operations twice a week.  Mr. Miano noted that

5



these communities are being evaluated for potential efficiencies or alternative collection methods. 
He commented that city-wide rerouting and maintaining service levels during transition were also
challenges of same day collection. 

Mr. Miano discussed areas that are transitioning to same day collection.  He stated that California
and Texas both have major metropolitan areas being serviced by same day collection.  In Arizona,
the City of Glendale, City of Prescott, Town of Queen Creek, City of Tucson and the City of Phoenix
utilize same day trash and recycling collection.  Mr. Miano indicated that some cities do not realize
cost savings benefits, however, customer service benefits and other efficiencies are advantages of
converting to same day collection.

Elizabeth Biggins-Ramer, Town of Buckeye, inquired if the 12 eliminated trucks were shifted to
other routes and if the City purchased any additional vehicles for the same day collection
implementation.  Mr. Miano responded that the annual replacement schedule is 35 new trucks,
however last year the City purchased 23 new trucks (12 fewer than previous years).  He indicated
that 12 operator positions were lost to attrition and new vacancies were not filled.  Mr. Miano
mentioned that two trucks service communities separately, one for refuse and one for recycling, to
avoid mixing of materials.  Additional vehicles were not purchased for the implementation of same
day collection.  Mr. Miano discussed that additional trucks could have been reduced, however, those
trucks are being utilized by the transfer facilities while they transition maintenance operations from
the previous four day schedule, to the new five day schedule.  

Mr. Miano stated that the Public Works Department has undergone two audits during the same day
collection process to ensure cost savings.  He stated that there are additional cost savings, however,
those savings and materials are going toward other programs in the City of Phoenix. 

Mr. Swanson asked if long term savings were realized for transfer facilities.  Mr. Miano replied that
there have been efficiencies realized with the transfer stations, however, an additional transfer station
may be beneficial to the routes.  He noted that the transfer facilities provide excellent customer
service through timely servicing.  Chair Smith indicated that transfer facilities are being evaluated
for additional long term savings in the form of modifying operational hours, since the collection
vehicle hours have changed.  She noted that after evaluation, modifications would likely be made
in six months time.  

Willy Elizondo, City of Goodyear, inquired if the Customer Contact Center was still under contract. 
Mr. Miano responded that the Customer Contact Center is no longer under contract, which has
translated into additional cost savings.  

Mr. Miano discussed the preparation effort that occurred prior to same day collection.  He stated that
the Solid Waste Field Services Division staff planned for various scenarios and what-if situations
for the implementation of same day collection.  Mr. Miano indicated that staff also conducted a
courtesy collection on July 7, 2012 to provide seamless customer service during same day collection
implementation.  

He stated that the staff preparations prior to implementation were useful.  Mr. Miano discussed that
their computer system crashed the day of same day implementation.  However, due to prior
preparations by staff, service was provided seamlessly.  Mr. Miano stated that the conversion to same
day collection was one of the most well executed projects performed by the Solid Waste Division. 
Despite routes being reconfigured, the labor management relations created a successful transition

6



for internal operations as well.  He indicated that the seamless transition was successful for both
internal and external customers.  

Mr. Swanson asked if a courtesy collection was provided to customers that had a long period
between collections during the transition.  Mr. Miano replied yes, a special collection was provided
to approximately 40,000 customers.  Mr. Kehoe inquired if the City provided courtesy collections
prior to same day collection and if a fee was charged for special collections.  Mr. Miano responded
that the City has and continues to provide courtesy collections.  The Division is currently going to
Council to explore the option of implementing a service fee for return trips.  Mr. Miano stated that
if a fee was instated the City would provide one courtesy collection per year, but the fee would then
apply for return trips.  

Christina Betz, City of Glendale, asked what options the City is investigating for residents on two
day collection.  Mr. Miano replied that each community may have different needs, however, front
load collection and a community tipper are two alternative methods that have been considered.  Ms.
Betz inquired if cost savings have been analyzed for communities on two day collection schedules. 
Mr. Miano responded that potential cost savings for these communities are being evaluated.  

Mr. Allen asked if trucks were running on Wednesdays during the four - ten hour day schedules. 
Chair Smith replied that trucks were running on Wednesdays since commercial accounts and some
residential collection occurred on those days.  Chair Smith stated that the new five day schedule has
aided the current contractor, MBI, and transfer station operations.

Ms. Biggins-Ramer inquired if the City changed its variance plans with Maricopa County.  Mr.
Miano responded that a variance plan was submitted in November 2011 to Maricopa County.  He
indicated that the variance plan included same day collection and a caveat for issuing new cans to
residents who had reoccurring issues of leaving their receptacles open.  Ms. Biggins-Ramer asked
if the variance plan was well received.  Mr. Miano replied yes.  

Mr. Miano thanked the Committee. 

4. Solid Waste Best Practices in the MAG Region 

Julie Hoffman, Maricopa Association of Governments, provided an overview of the Solid Waste
Best Practices in the MAG Region.  She stated that in October 2011, the MAG Management
Committee expressed interest in reconvening the MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee to share
ideas on best practices.  Since the first meeting in February 2012, the Committee has heard a number
of presentations on successful solid waste projects and programs that have been implemented in the
region.  Ms. Hoffman indicated that in August 2012, a questionnaire was distributed to the members
of the MAG Management Committee requesting assistance in compiling a list of solid waste best
practices.  She noted that responses were received from 12 jurisdictions and 24 best practices have
been submitted.  

Ms. Hoffman discussed the best practices received.  She noted the number of household hazardous
waste and recycling best practices that were submitted.  She added that the best practices also cover
a variety of other areas in the solid waste industry.  Ms. Hoffman indicated that the report highlights
the innovative ways MAG member agencies are addressing some of the challenges associated with
solid waste.  She thanked the Committee for their work on the report and the communities for their
commitments to protecting residents and the environment by providing effective solid waste and

7



recycling services.  Ms. Hoffman stated that the Solid Waste Best Practices in the MAG Region
report will be presented to the MAG Management Committee in November.  

Chair Smith thanked the Committee for their submissions to the report.  She mentioned that the
report conveys the effort and thought put into the best practices to address needs of the communities. 
Chair Smith stated that the report will demonstrate the best practice projects and programs from a
regional perspective for the MAG Management Committee.  Ms. Hoffman indicated that there is still
an opportunity to submit best practices.  It was requested that additional submissions to the best
practice report be provided to MAG staff by Tuesday, October 23, 2012, to ensure inclusion in the
report for the MAG Management Committee agenda mailout.  Chair Smith commented that the
contact information included in the best practices report is beneficial for the region as well.  Chair
Smith thanked the Committee for their efforts in collaborating on the Solid Waste Best Practices in
the MAG Region report.  

6. Regional Solid Waste Management Statistics

Ms. Hoffman provided an update on the regional solid waste management statistics.  She indicated
that the Solid Waste Advisory Committee Survey conducted in March identified an interest in
updating data included in the MAG Regional Solid Waste Management Plan.  Ms. Hoffman
reviewed potential categories of information in the Plan that could be updated, which included:
facilities; programs offered; and solid waste generation.  She noted that additional tables of
information that could be collected have been drafted based on feedback from the Committee.  Ms.
Hoffman noted that the draft tables were provided at each place.  

Ms. Hoffman discussed the draft tables provided to the Committee.  The information on the draft
tables included: residential recycling; commercial recycling; solid waste rates and services; and
tables from the MAG Regional Solid Waste Management Plan containing 2002 data.  Ms. Hoffman
stated that the residential and commercial recycling tables would include information on materials
collected for recycling, recycling tonnage, and diversion rate.  The solid waste rates and services
table requests information on services provided and the current rates for those services.  Ms.
Hoffman mentioned that the remaining tables are from the 2005 MAG Regional Solid Waste
Management Plan.  However, the table labeled Member Agency Solid Waste Management Plan was
updated to include two new line items - plastic bag recycling and green waste collection.  Ms.
Hoffman requested feedback on the draft tables. 

Ms. Simpson stated that Queen Creek would not be able to produce much of this information due
to contract work.  She stated that the Town does not operate a landfill, own a Materials Recovery
Facility, or have a completed solid waste survey to utilize for the information on the tables.  Ms.
Simpson inquired what the end goal is for the information included on the tables.  Ms. Hoffman
noted that information included in the Solid Waste Management Plan is from 2002 and interest has
been expressed in updating the data to provide a regional picture.  She indicated that feedback is
requested on whether collecting the information included on the tables is helpful to the member
agencies.  Chair Smith mentioned that the City of Phoenix will not be able to provide all of the
information on the tables either; it is understood that agencies may not be able to produce completed
tables.  She commented that the tables produced are a stepping stone actualized from Committee
dialogue.  Chair Smith stated that some of the tables may be scaled back depending on what
information jurisdictions find beneficial and are able to provide. 

8



Cindy Blackmore, City of Avondale, stated that the City of Avondale would be able to provide how
the materials are collected and the total tonnage.  She indicated that if the preceding information is
adequate, the provided tables are acceptable.  Chair Smith commented that the total tonnage is
acceptable.  

John Osgood, City of Tempe, stated that the City of Tempe does possess pieces of the information
from contracted vendors, however, the information is not as detailed as the tables.  Chair Smith
asked if broad categories would better suit jurisdictions.  Chair Smith also inquired if commercial
and residential recycling categories should be separated or if a combined total recycling tonnage data
is as valuable.  

Mr. Osgood explained that the City of Tempe can provide the breakdown of information that is
received from their contracted vendors.  He indicated that Tempe is currently working toward a
diversion rate goal.  Mr. Osgood stated that the City is interested in specifically defining the
diversion rate and how this definition correlates regionally.  He discussed that the City of Tempe has
a high percentage of multi-family dwelling units which presents challenges to the recycling program. 
Mr. Osgood discussed that nearly 40 percent of Tempe residents live in dwellings that are above five
units.  He noted that the City will be analyzing both commercial and residential recycling.

Ms. Sepulveda inquired what the Committee intends to accomplish with the data collected.  She
mentioned that the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) collects similar data to
the information on the tables.  Ms. Sepulveda expressed concern that the information collected will
not have continuity between jurisdictions, especially on topics like diversion rates and participation
rates.  She stated that the information provided ought to be beneficial for the region. 

Chair Smith responded that the idea of developing definitions to ensure continuity between data from
jurisdictions across the region has been discussed by the Committee.  She indicated that this
collection effort would create a baseline for information.  Chair Smith commented that the
information collected may not be comprehensive, however, the hope is that the information can aid
future discussion and information sharing.  

Veronica Garcia, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality, stated that minimal information
collection has recently been conducted by ADEQ and that information collection performed by
ADEQ is not mandatory.  She indicated that she will investigate what information is available from
ADEQ.  However, she noted that the data is not current and limited.  Ms. Garcia added that
the ADEQ recycling program has not been maintained in recent years. 

Ms. Sepulveda asked if ADEQ was continuing the annual report on solid waste.  Ms. Garcia replied
that ADEQ is currently not producing the report.  

Ms. Sepulveda commented that staff time is dedicated to provide the information requested, the
information provided ought to be utilized and useful to others. 

Chair Smith inquired if the information on the tables would be of value to others.  She indicated that
the information collection would provide baseline information for recycling in order to attain a
regional perspective for recycling.  

Ms. Sepulveda replied that the Valleywide Recycling Partnership (VRP) purpose is for
municipalities to come together, discuss, and share information with regard to recycling.  She

9



commented that VRP has executed excellent work in the Valley with regard to recycling.  Ms.
Sepulveda indicated that VRP has information from communities that participate in VRP.  She
discussed that some of the information to be collected from the tables may duplicate information
already collected by VRP.  Ms. Sepulveda suggested that the Committee work with VRP to
determine what information from the region is available.  

Chair Smith explained that based on discussions with VRP, informal discussions have occurred and
VRP has collected pieces of information with regard to recycling.  However, she commented that
a comprehensive data collection for the entire region has not been conducted by VRP. 

Ms. Sepulveda mentioned that VRP does promotional work with regard to recycling on common,
similar trends throughout the region.  She stated that in years past, ADEQ has collected similar
information, perhaps ADEQ’s collection format could be useful for this collection effort.  Ms.
Sepulveda indicated that ADEQ’s previous solid waste reports were the foundation of information
for the region.  

Ms. Garcia commented that she was not sure when the last solid waste report was generated.  She
stated that ADEQ is aiming to recover the ADEQ Recycling Program noting that the Recycling Fund
has been swiped for the past few years.  Ms. Garcia mentioned that the recycling program has not
been active other than some electronic recycling events that were coordinated through the Public
Information Office.  She noted that ADEQ is now seeking appropriations for the recycling funds that
have been acquired.  Ms. Garcia indicated that a letter will be sent out once appropriations for the
funding is approved to reinstate the Recycling Advisory Committee.  She discussed that ADEQ is
interested in diversion rates for the region.  Ms. Garcia stated that following appropriations for the
recycling funds, ADEQ will produce the annual solid waste report.  

Ms. Betz replied that she recently reviewed a letter from ADEQ requesting information.  She
indicated that the letter requested recycling data for previous years.  The City of Glendale is in the
process of submitting data to ADEQ.  Ms. Betz mentioned that perhaps the information being
collected is for the annual solid waste report.  She discussed that the data being collected by ADEQ
and the potential MAG information collection effort may be a duplication on some fronts.  However,
she stated that there is value in the MAG information collection in that it would present a formal,
comprehensive data set.  

Ms. Biggins-Ramer responded that a duplication of information gathering processes is not beneficial,
however, she stated that a comprehensive perspective on solid waste and recycling is not currently
available.  She indicated that the collection effort can be lead by either ADEQ, MAG, Maricopa
County, or another agency, however, the ultimate goal is to provide a comprehensive regional
perspective on solid waste and recycling on a consistent basis.  She commented that the outdated
data currently available is not useful. 

Ms. Sepulveda noted that the information collected could be valuable outside the county boundaries,
ADEQ has the reach to make this information useful to the state as a whole.  She indicated that the
City of Chandler will provide data to whichever agency takes the lead on the information collection
and that information will continue to be provided to ADEQ for the solid waste report.  Ms.
Sepulveda discussed that the information collected can act as a foundation of information for others
throughout the state.

10



Ms. Hoffman responded that the update of the regional solid waste management statistics can be
placed on hold until the information collection effort by ADEQ can be reviewed to ensure no
duplication of collection efforts and also to further review the categories of collection.  

Ms. Sepulveda stated that ADEQ does not need to spearhead the collection efforts, however, when
great effort is placed into solid waste and recycling programs, it is beneficial for the state to be aware
of such efforts.  The knowledge could benefit the state in both best management practices and
advocacy.  Ms. Sepulveda mentioned that most recycling and waste reduction programs are based
on best management practices and volunteerism.  She commented that collection responsibilities
performed on a state level make advocacy and legislative matters easier. 

Chair Smith stated that Ms. Hoffman will work with ADEQ to evaluate the information provided
in the collection efforts based on the feedback from the Committee.  This topic will be discussed at
the next meeting.  She indicated that if the Committee has any questions or comments with regard
to this agenda item emails can be placed to MAG staff or herself.  

7. Regional Recycling Video

Chair Smith discussed the production of a regional recycling video.  She indicated that this idea has
been generated from Committee discussion and the high level of interest in recycling.  

Ms. Hoffman stated that the idea for a regional recycling video has been discussed by Committee
members as the next activity following the Solid Waste Best Practices report.  MAG maintains a
Video Outreach Program in which a range of videos are produced for the region.  The videos are
placed on the MAG website and are also utilized by Channel 11 and member agency websites.  Ms.
Hoffman stated that the differing recycling programs present a challenge, however, the video could
focus on the importance of recycling, advocating recycling participation, and similarities of recycling
programs in the region.  She inquired if the Committee is interested in creating a regional recycling
video, making sure not to duplicate any efforts of the Valleywide Recycling Partnership. 

Ms. Blackmore replied that a MAG produced regional recycling video could be a duplication of
effort and resources put forth by the Valleywide Recycling Partnership.  She noted that VRP has
produced regional recycling messages and resources.  Ms. Blackmore inquired about showing
support for the work that VRP is conducting either through representation at their meetings or an ad
hoc representative on the MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee.  She mentioned a collaborative
effort in lieu of creating a separate recycling message.  

Ms. Sepulveda asked if the video would showcase recycling programs or promote similarities of
recycling programs.  Ms. Hoffman responded that the video could highlight recycling from a regional
perspective.  She indicated that personal stories could be used to showcase how recycling benefits
families and the environment.  Ms. Hoffman noted that the video would likely not discuss every
Valley recycling program, but take a more general perspective on waste reduction and recycling.  Ms.
Sepulveda commented on a recycling video being a duplication of VRP resources available.  She
indicated that a video showcasing the wide varieties of programs offered in the Valley would be
challenging due to the differences among the programs.  Ms. Sepulveda stated that VRP has been
active in the region for over 10 years and has many accomplishments.  VRP has partnered with many
agencies to utilize resources efficiently and to promote resources that benefit the Valley as a whole. 
Ms. Sepulveda indicated that the idea of displaying families that recycle is a constructive example,
however, VRP has previously done excellent work in creating similar public service announcements. 

11



She noted that VRP has also made sure that their resources and tools are available to the region in
multiple formats.  Ms. Sepulveda encouraged support for VRP from communities and the
Committee. 

Chair Smith proposed the idea of creating a small group that may assist and support information
sharing with Valleywide Recycling Partnership.  She indicated that the Committee does not wish to
shadow VRP’s accomplishments, but rather compliment their efforts achieved in the Valley.  Chair
Smith inquired if anyone would like to volunteer to work collaboratively with VRP.  She noted that
not every member agency is partnered with VRP, however, there is value in collaboration.  Ms.
Blackmore, Ms. Sepulveda, Mr. Elizondo, Ms. Garcia, and Ms. Simpson volunteered to assist with
MAG/VRP collaboration efforts.  

Ms. Simpson stated that she agrees on collaborating with VRP.  She indicated that the informal
discussions with members of the Committee initiated by MAG have been informative.  Ms. Simpson
noted that some individuals of the solid waste community are not aware of the public education and
outreach efforts taking place in the Valley.  Focus needs to be placed on the available resources and
how to make the available resources more present in communities.  Ms. Simpson indicated that VRP
and the Arizona Recycling Coalition have put forth a great effort to provide activities and resources,
but the question of why people are not aware of these efforts should be addressed.  She added that
she would be willing to assist in collaboration with VRP to bring recycling efforts in the region to
light and work on how support can be provided to these recycling efforts. 

Chair Smith thanked the volunteers.  She stated that the collaboration should prove to be valuable. 

8. Next Steps for the MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee

Chair Smith reviewed the next steps for the MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee.  She indicated
that she had asked Committee members at the last meeting to speak with their City Managers on
future activities for the Solid Waste Advisory Committee.  She requested feedback from the
Committee.  No comments were received.

9. Call for Future Agenda Items

Chair Smith asked the Committee for suggestions on future agenda items. 

Mr. Swanson suggested further discussion on who will lead the information collection efforts.  He
commented that data collection efforts should be performed by the Committee in order to share
recycling efforts, how jurisdictions are doing, and further best practices.  Mr. Swanson stated that
ADEQ’s role is to regulate and seek compliancy, not to determine the region’s best practices.  Mr.
Swanson encouraged that further discussion occur to determine agency boundaries, roles, and what
functions each agency will perform to avoid duplication of efforts and uncertainty.  

Ms. Garcia agreed with Mr. Swanson.  She stated that ADEQ is not looking to pressure agencies in
any way regarding best practices.  Ms. Garcia discussed ADEQ serving as a repository of
information.  She clarified that ADEQ is not looking to instruct on what best management practices
to implement. 

Ms. Simpson noted that with the MAG Air Quality Technical Advisory Committee (AQTAC) many
agencies on the AQTAC perform different roles and compliancy efforts, however, the AQTAC

12



comes together to discuss regional efforts as well.  Ms. Simpson referred to the members of the
MAG Solid Waste Advisory Committee and stated that there are many differences between
municipality programs and operations, however, discussion can occur on what efforts can be taken
regionally.  She indicated that collaboration may be challenging due to differences in operations,
however, there are common threads and areas for collaboration.  Despite differences between
municipalities, the region is trying to accomplish similar goals with regard to diversion rate and
pollution.  Ms. Simpson stated that she would like to see this Committee collaborate on regional
goals. 

Ms. Blackmore commented on a successful regional effort.  The City of Goodyear reached out to
other Southwest Valley Cities and Towns to hold a joint Household Hazardous Waste Collection
Day.  The City of Goodyear, the City of Avondale, City of Litchfield Park and the City of Tolleson
have now established an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) to participate in joint Household
Hazardous Waste Days.  The IGA stands for three year periods, with a three year renewal period.  

10. Comments from the Committee

Chair Smith asked for any comments from the Committee.  With no further comments, Chair Smith
thanked the Committee for participating and called for adjournment of the meeting at
approximately 11:55 a.m.

13


	MEMBERS ATTENDING
	OTHERS PRESENT

